
 

 
 

 
 

     SOUL GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 
Sanctuary Recreation Room 

2336 Calaveras Street 
 Fresno, CA 93721 

Tuesday, March 12, 2024 
    8:30 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 

  Presenter   Motion Page 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Dr. Terry Allen   

2. COMMUNITY ACTION PROMISE Susan Lopez  1 

3. ROLL CALL Commissioner Rodgers   

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
February 6, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

Dr. Terry Allen Approve 2 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Council on items within 
jurisdiction but not on the agenda. Comments are limited to three minutes). 
 

6. SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT CARD 
(SARC) 
 

Susan Lopez  Approve 5 

7. RESOLUTION OF 2022-23 AUDIT FINDINGS 
 

Susan Lopez Information 44 

8. SOUL UPDATE: PRINCIPAL REPORT 
 

Susan Lopez Information 49 

9. 2024 COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT Susan Lopez Information 52 

10. OTHER BUSINESS                                                    Dr. Terry Allen    
The next Governing Council meeting is scheduled for April 9, 2024.    

11. ADJOURNMENT 



Community Action Promise

Community Action changes people’s lives, embodies the spirit of hope, improves 
communities, and makes America a better place to live. 

We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to helping people 
help themselves and each other.

1



2 
 

FRESNO EOC SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING 
GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

Sanctuary Recreation Room 
Tuesday, February 6, 2023 

                 MINUTES 
 
1.   Meeting called to order by Dr. Terry Allen 8:35 a.m.  
 
2.   Community Action Promise 
      Terry Allen guided the Governing Council in reading the Community Action Promise. 
        
3.   Roll call facilitated by Commissioner Rodgers. 

 
4.   Approval of Minutes  
      December 5, 2023 Governing Council Meeting Minutes.  
     

Public Comments: None heard. 
      
      Motion by: Starks   Second by: Taylor 

Ayes: Washington, Griffin, Overton, Lomelino, Lopez, Luttrell, Saavedra, Turner, Failla, Romero 
      Nays: None 
 
5.  Public Comments 

 (This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Council on items within jurisdiction but not on the 
agenda.  Comments are limited to three minutes). 

 
6.  2024-2025 Safe School Plan 
     Courtney Griffin presented the Safe School Plan to the Council members.  Griffin shared that the information is updated annually.  

SOUL is required each year by March 1st to develop a Safe School Plan and submit to FUSD, in accordance with the State of 
California.  A motion was made to approve the 2024-2025 Safe School Plan. 

 
     Public Comments: None heard. 
      
      Motion by:  Turner Second by: Taylor 

Ayes:  Washington, Griffin, Overton, Lomelino, Luttrell, Saavedra, Lopez, Starks, Failla, Overton 
      Nays: None 
 
 
 

Voting Members 

Pr
es

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

Ab
se

nt
 Staff 

Pr
es

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

Ab
se

nt
 Non-Voting  

Member Pr
es

en
t 

Ex
cu

se
d 

Ab
se

nt
 Guests 

 
Terry Allen, Ed.D., Chair, Retired Teacher Representative  X  Jack Lazzarini X   Felicia Olais X   Sherry Neil 

Benita Washington, Vice Chair,  
FSU Social Worker Representative  

X   Cha Vang  X      Catie Villegas 

Jimi Rodgers, Secretary, Fresno EOC Commissioner  X  Michelle Tutunjian 
 

 X       

Larry Metzler, Cultural Arts Rotary Interact Club Advisor  X  Emilia Reyes  X       

Jeanne Starks, Retired Law Enforcement Juvenile 
Probation  

X            

Julio Romero, EOC Health Services X            

Steven Taylor, Fresno EOC Commissioner X            

Patrick Turner, Fresno EOC Training and Employment X            

Parent Rep  Lucy Luttrell   X            

Student Rep’s    (2) Halle Overton, Kassandra Saavedra 
Alternate Student Rep   

X 
X 

           

Susan Lopez, Staff Representative, Principal  X            

Rena Failla, Staff Representative, Guidance Coordinator  X            

Courtney Griffin, Staff Representative, Guidance Dean X             

Sandy Lomelino, Staff Representative,  
Coordinator of Curriculum & Instruction 

X            



3 
 

 
 
7.  School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 
     Susan Lopez reported on the SARC.   The SARC provides information on how each California Local Educational Agency (LEA) 

has met the needs of it’s student population during the previous year.   Lopez shared that where data cells are populated with 
(DPC) the state will complete those portions of the report card.  SOUL has several areas of repair to the building that are planned.  
During spring break the roof is scheduled to be repaired, and a new air conditioning unit for the theater is planned.  The Council 
discussed the information provided. Steven Taylor shared that he would like to see the completed report card.  Lopez will provide 
a copy of the SARC report once completed by the CA Department of Education.   A motion was made to approve the SARC. 

 
     Public Comments: None heard. 
      
     Motion by:  Turner Second by: Romero 
     Ayes:  Washington, Griffin, Overton, Lomelino, Luttrell, Saavedra, Lopez, Starks, Failla 
     Nays:  
  Abstain: Taylor 
 
8.  SOUL – Material Revision     
     Rena Failla and Sandy Lomelino reported that SOUL has operated as both a classroom-based and independent study based 

program during our 24 year tenure as a school.  The sole purpose for the Materiel Revision is to continue with the independent 
study based program and no longer offer a classroom-based program. Failla and Lomelino shared that over several years our 
classroom-based program enrollment has continued to decrease while the independent study program enrollment has increased. 
COVID helped verify that the independent study program continues to be the best learning style for our students.  Their academic 
and emotional needs are met and that was confirmed through increased test scores, and increased student’s attendance at 
school.  Currently 94% of our students are enrolled in SOUL’s independent study program and thriving.  Independent Study has 
provided our students with more flexibility, more focused, one-on-one time with teachers, less classroom distractions and is 
supported by our community stakeholders.  The independent study curriculum utilizes books not packets, 26 core and elective 
courses at SOUL are A-G approved, and the curriculum is equivalent to the classroom-based curriculum.  SOUL’s Governing 
Council Parent Representative Lucy Luttrell and our Student Representative, Halle Overton shared their stories about how 
SOUL’s independent study program has provided more opportunities for academic success.  Council members discussed the 
information presented.  Fresno Unified School District’s (FUSD) Charter Director, Felicia Olais shared with the Council the 
process by which the Material Revision must be presented to FUSD. 

        
     Public Comments: None heard. 
      
     Motion by: Taylor Second by: Starks 
     Ayes:  Washington, Griffin, Overton, Lomelino, Luttrell, Saavedra, Lopez, Starks, Failla, Turner 
     Nays: None 
 
9.  Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Budget Overview Update 
     Lopez reported information on the granted LCAP funds received through the California Department of Education for the 2023-

2024 school year.in the amount $3,588,263.  These funds are provided to address student-learning loss.  The funds are 
delineated in the provided budgets; along with how they are spent, this is reported annually to California Department of 
Education.  SOUL plans to spend these funds by the deadline of September 30, 2025. 

 
10. Arts and Music Grant Budget Update 
     Lopez shared information on the Arts and Music funds received to purchase instructional materials and resources to support 

SOUL’s art and music education programs.  .SOUL received a total of $55,644.00 that must be spent by the 2025-2026 fiscal 
year; the budget explains how the funds will be expended. 

 
11. SOUL Update: Principal Report 
      Lopez reported on the Classroom-based and Independent Study program demographics as presented on the Principals   

report.        
 Current enrollment for January 221. 
 Parent Meeting: students received academic awards; their parents appreciated watching their child receive these awards. 
 SOUL’s Spanish speaking parents attended an English Language Advisory Committee (ELAC) meeting, to learn more 

about the programs offered to their children. El Centro La Familia also attended and presented to the parents. 
 Food and Clothing is available for students at the Student Store. 

 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 On February 21, 2024 Dr. Robert Mitchell will be speaking at our Black History Month celebration.  There will also be a 

Blood Drive.  
 Friday, April 5, 2024 will be SOUL’s 25th year celebration from 12:30 – 3:00 pm. 
 SOUL’s Graduation Ceremony will be held at the Warnors Center For The Performing Arts, Wednesday, June 5, 2024 at 

12:30 pm.   
 
 12. Other Business 
      None heard 
 
13. Adjournment of Meeting 
      Meeting adjourned at 9:39 am 
 
 
 
 
 

    Submitted by Commissioner Jimi Rodgers, SOUL Governing Council Secretary 
 



 

5 
 

 
SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

Date:  March 12, 2024 Program: School of Unlimited Learning  

Agenda Item #:  6 Director:  Susan Lopez, Principal   

Subject: 2022/2023 School Accountability 
Report Card  

Officer:    Jack Lazzarini  

  
Recommended Action  
  
The information presented below is intended to keep the board apprised on the School of 
Unlimited Learning’s 2021/2022 School Accountability Report Card (SARC) 

  
Background  

By March 12th of each school year, California schools are required by the State of California 
Department of Education to submit a SARC for the previous school year. Attached is the 
2022/2023 SOUL SARC.  SOUL’s School Accountability Report Card is developed each year 
using the CA Department of Education template for all school in California. 
  
Fiscal Impact  

None 

Conclusion  

The 2022/2023 SOUL School Accountability Report Card must be approved and submitted to 
the State of California Department of Education prior to March 12, 2024. 

 
 
 
 



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

44 
 

 
 

 
 

SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

  
Recommended Action  
  
The information presented below is to inform the Governing Council of School of 
Unlimited Learning’s (SOUL) Resolution of 2022-23 Audit Findings submittal to Fresno 
Unified School District. 
       
Background  
  
An audit is conducted yearly to review the School of Unlimited Learning’s data, which is 
submitted to FUSD, Fresno County Superintendent of School’s office, and ultimately the 
State of California.  There was a finding for the 2022-2023 school year, regarding 
attendance records, which has since been resolved. 
 
Fiscal Impact  

None 

 

Conclusion  

It is SOUL’s intent to provide correct information for submittal to our governing 
agencies.  SOUL has implemented a 3 -person team to review such documents to 
ensure no mistakes are made.   

 
 
 
 
 

Date:  March 12, 2024 Program: School of Unlimited Learning  

Agenda Item #:  7 Director:  Susan Lopez    
Subject:  Resolution of 2022-23 Audit 
Findings 

Officer:    Jack Lazzarini  



CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION 

2022-23 AUDIT FINDING AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

CHARTER NAME School Of Unlimited Learning 

✓ 2022-23 Certification of Corrective Action is hereby tiled
by the Governin° ard of the Charter School 

Clerk/Secretary of the 

✓ 2022-23 Certification of Corrective Action:

12/22/23 

Date of Meeting 

The Administrator certifies that all corrective action(s) specified in the 
attached page(s) have been reviewed by the Charter's Governing Board and 
assures that corrective procedures have been implemented and will be used 
in the ensuing years. 

For additional information: 

Contact:Jay Zapata, CFO

Date 

Phone: 559-263-1030

Submit the original Certification of Corrective Action together with each Audit Finding 
or�ective Action fonn and corresponding documentation: 

Gabriel Halls, Senior Director, District Financial Services 
Fresno County Superintendent of Schools 
1111 Van Ness Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93721-2000 

Your response must be submitted by March 15, 2024. 

45



AUDIT CERTIFICATION
2022-23 FINANCIAL REPORT/AUDIT

.HARTER Navre School Of U nlimite

FRESNO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

In accordance with Assembly Bill3627, Chapter 1002, as it pertains to Education Code
Section 41020.3, the Governing Board must review and accept the prior year's Financial
Report/Audit, at a public meeting on or before January 3 I't.

THEREBY, as written cation of said review, the Governing Board reviewed and
accepted 12122t23 2024 the Annual Financial as ofJ 30,2023.

Admin (s Date

AUrHoRrzrNG DrsrRrcr. Fresno Unified School District

FRESNO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Pursuant to this District's fiscal oversight responsibilities as described in Education Code
Section 47604.32(d) as the authorizer of the above-referenced Chafier School, I hereby
certify that the Charter School's Annual Financial Report has been reviewed by the District
and that the District has approved any corrective actions or plans that have or will be taken,
except as noted on the attached sheet. (Please provide inforrnation regarding any audit
exceptions that, in the District's opinion, have not been adequately corrected or for which
an adequate plan of corection has not been provided.)

Authorizing District (S ignature)
Superintendent or Chief Business Official

Date

Submit the Audit Certification by March 15,2024 to:

Gabriel Halls, Senior Director, District Financial Services
Fresno County Superintendent of Schools
1 111 Van Ness Avenue
Fresno, CA 93721-2000

46



.d'1 ..

2022-23 AUDIT FINDING CORRECTIVE ACTION

CHARTER NAME School Of Unlimited Learning

FINDING CATEGORY 2023-001

FINDING: # 1 PAGE# 29

ln order to not repeat the questioned attendance record with a discrepancy of 5
days, SOUL management will be diligent in self-auditing our records on a monthly
basis. SOUL currently has 2 staff members verifying attendance records. ln the
future, SOUL will have 3 staff members verify attendance records.

A-

47



UNRESOLVED 2O2I-22 AUDIT FINDING

CHARTER NAME: School Of Unlimited Learning

FINDING CATEGORY

FINDING # PAGE#

Auditor's Recommendation :

N/A

Whv- sneci allv- is there a nrohlem reso lvins this findins?

N/A

Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board Date

48



 

49 
 

 
 

 
 
 

SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING 

  
Recommended Action  
  
The information presented below is intended to keep the board apprised of SOUL’s Principal 
Report for the month of March.   
       
Background  
  
SOUL enrollment fluctuates throughout the year.  Data gathered once a month is presented to 
the Governing Council at each meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact  

None 

Conclusion  

SOUL’s Principal Report reflects student data for the month of March 2024. 
 

 

Date:  March 12, 2024 Program: School of Unlimited Learning  

Agenda Item #:  8 Director:  Susan Lopez    

Subject: SOUL Principal’s report Officer:    Jack Lazzarini  



50 
 

S C H O O L  O F  U N L I M I T E D  L E A R N I N G  
P R I N C I P A L ’ S  R E P O R T  

M A R C H  2 0 2 4  
C L A S S R O O M  B A S E D  T O T A L :  1 4   

 

 

 

  

43%
57%

Classroom Based Students 
by Gender

Male Female

4

2

5

3

0 2 4 6

9TH GRADE

10TH GRADE

11TH GRADE

12TH GRADE 

Classroom Based Students by 
Grade

10

4

0 5 10 15

HISPANIC 

NON-HISPANIC 

Classroom Based
Students by Ethnicity 

4

10

BLACK OR AFRICAN 
AMERICAN 

HISPANIC OR LATINO 

Classroom Based Students 
by Race 

12

3

SOCIO-ECONOMICALLY 
DISADVANTAGED

SPECIAL EDUCATION 

0 5 10 15

Classroom Based
Reported Program

1

13

FOSTER FAMILY HOME OR 
KINSHIP PLACEMENT 

PERMANENT HOUSING 

Classroom Based Students by Residence 



51 
 

22

39

59

75

9TH GRADE

10TH GRADE

11TH GRADE

12TH GRADE 

Independent Study 
Students by Grade 

S C H O O L  O F  U N L I M I T E D  L E A R N I N G  
P R I N C I P A L ’ S  R E P O R T  

M A R C H  2 0 2 4   
I N D E P E N D E N T  S T U D I E S  T O T A L : 2 0 5   

 

 

 

96

108

1

0 50 100 150

MALE 

FEMALE 

NON-BINARY

Independent Study by 
Gender

189

21

0 50 100 150 200

SOCIO-ECONOMICALLY 
DISADVANTAGED

SPECIAL EDUCATION 

Independent Study Students 
by Reported Programs

171

34

HISPANIC NON-HISPANIC 

Independent Study by Ethinicity

2

181

22

0 50 100 150 200

FOSTER FAMILY HOME OR 
KINSHIP PLACEMENT 

PERMANENT HOUSING 

HOMELESS, TEMPORARY 
SHELTER OR OTHER

Independent Study Students by Residence 

4

18

1
170

1

1

1

1

8

0 50 100 150 200

AMERICAN INDIAN OR ALASKA …

BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN 

FILIPINO

HISPANIC OR LATINO 

CAMBODIAN

MIDDLE EASTERN

OTHER ASIAN

OTHER PACIFIC ISLANDER

WHITE 

Independent Study Students by Race 



Fresno EOC

COMMUNITY NEEDS

ASSESSMENT 

We want to hearWe want to hear
from you!from you!

Fresno EOC is asking Fresno County residents to share their thoughts and

experiences on how we can better serve our communities. 

Scan the QR Code to

take the survey 

or visitfresnoeoc.org

Survey is open from

March 5 - April 5

Share it with friends and

family

Participate in Upcoming

Community Forums

Join us for a Community Forum! 

Information on the reverse side



Franklin Head Start - Fresno

Saturday, March 16, 2024 • 10:00 am - 12:00 pm

1189 Martin Ave, Fresno, CA 93706

Community Forum Locations

AMOR Wellness - Mendota

Wednesday, March 20, 2024 • 6:00 pm - 7:00 pm

115 Belmont Ave, Mendota, CA 93640

 FOR MORE INFORMATION EMAIL:

yourvoice@fresnoeoc.org

John Palacios Community Center - Huron

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 • 5:00 pm - 7:00 pm

16846 4th St, Huron, CA 93234

Boys and Girls Club - Pinedale

Tuesday, March 19, 2024 • 5:30 pm - 6:30 pm

343 West Minarets Ave, Pinedale, CA 93650

Only 93706 residents can apply for $500 a month through

Advancing Fresno County Guaranteed Income

Only 93234 residents can apply for $500 a month through

Advancing Fresno County Guaranteed Income

We Value Your Time! All Community Forums are in-person.

Childcare and refreshments will be provided. 

Each household has the opportunity to receive a $25 value gift card. 

Only 1 gift card per household. 18 and over. Limited space available.


	1. March Agenda 2024  1
	2. Community Action Promise
	3.  soul gc minutes    2-6-2024
	GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING
	MINUTES


	4.  SARC Agenda Cover
	Recommended Action
	Background
	Conclusion

	5.  School Accountability Report Card
	6.  Audit Correction agenda Cover 1
	Recommended Action
	Conclusion

	7.  2022-23 SIGNED CHARTER CORRECTIVE PACKET
	8.  Principal Report Agenda Cover  1
	Recommended Action
	Conclusion

	9.  Principal's Report MARCH 2024
	10.  CNA- 2 sided forum- 8.5X11 Final Approved by MT



